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MEMB[R ~V, FRIC AN INST~Lr~F Or CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS DAUZAT, BEALL & DEBEVEC, CPAs A PROFESSICr;AL CORPORAH~CN INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
Board of Directors Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc Natchitoches, Louisiana 

MEMBER SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA CERTIFIED PUBtlC ACCOUNTANTS 

We were engaged to audit the Statement of Financial Position of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. As of January 31, 1997, and related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Ine.'s management. Detailed accounts receivable records for patient revenues and detailed property and equipment records were not reconcilable to control accounts and we were unable to confirm the accounts receivable amount of $240 258 and the property and equipment amount of $2,533,193 or to determine the amounts through alternative procedures. Therefore, we were not able to satisfy ourselves about the amount~ at which patient accounts receivable and the related allowance for uncollectibles and the amounts at which property and equipment and the related accumulated depreciation are recorded in the accompanying Statement of Financial Position at January 3 I, 1997 and the amount of bad debt expense and depreciation expense in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets for the year then ended. Because of the significance of the mater discussed in the preceding paragraph, the scope of our work was not sufficient to enable us to express, and we do not express, an opinion on the financial statements referred to in the first paragraph. 

Certified Public Accountants September 30, 1997 

1220 WINDSOR pLACE ~ ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 71303 ~ (318) 443-3977 ~ FAX (318) 445 2017 2003 FOURTH STREET, SUITE B ~ JONESVILLE, LOUISIANA 71343 ~ (318) 339-6505 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION JANUARY 31, 1997 
Unrestricted General Fund 

ASSETS Cash Grants receivable Patient Accounts receivable (net of estimated uncollectible amount of $61,883 ) Other Receivables Prepaid expense Property and equipment Net of accumulated depreciation Total Assets LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS Accounts payable Accrued payroll Due to State of Louisiana Line of Credit - Exchange Bank Note Payable - Exchange Bank Capital lease payable Total liabilities NET ASSETS Unrestricted Temporarily Restricted Total net assets Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

$ 84.043 
178,375 613,679 24,718 
1.380,0~8 $2,281253 

Temporarily Restricted WlC 
$ 6,535 19,328 

$ 150,658 30,178 $2,183 74,174 101,513 150,025 573~74~ 1.080.293 
1,200,960 
1,200,960 $2.281.253 

$ 90,578 19,328 178,375 613,679 24,718 1.380.088 $2,3o7,116 
$ 150,658 32,361 74,174 1Ol,513 150,025 573.745 2,183 1,082,476 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 

1,200,960 23.680 1,224,640 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT Patient Service Revenue (net of contractura allowances) Rill (Sect 330) Grant WIC Grant Third party cost reimbursement Miscellaneous Medicaid Application Fees Interest Total revenues and other support EXPENSES Salaries Payroll taxes Fringe benefits Continuing Education Office supplies and expense Medical drugs & supplies Contract labor Depreciation Publications Rent expense Repairs and maintenance Insurance Legal and accounting Interest Bad debt expense Miscellaneous Other lab fees Utilities and telephone Other taxes Medical billing Total Expenses DECREASE IN NET ASSETS 

Unrestricted Gener::I Fund 
$ 1,077,403 1.877.043 376,565 4,338 2,700 2.850 3.340.899 
1,901,208 120,721 169,420 37,618 103,47I 184,362 11,507 98,512 2,221 44,882 59,245 46,458 30,505 54,596 208,568 1,930 84,257 125,085 14.294 ~.350.810 (9,911) NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 1,229,234 GAIN ON SALE OF EQUIPMENT 3,451 ADD (DEDUCT) TRANSFERS 2.._..(2.!.,.~A) NET ASSETS, END OF PERIOD 

Temporarily Restricted WIC Fund 
$124,333 

137,369 10,509 
8,986 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

$ 1,077,403 1,877,043 124,333 376,565 4,338 2,700 2,~0 3.465.232 
2,038,577 131,230 169,420 37,618 112,457 184,362 11,507 98,512 2,221 44,882 59,245 46,458 30,505 54,596 208,568 1,930 84,257 125,085 14,294 51.950 3.507.674 (42,442) 1,263,631 3.451 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS JANUARY 31, 1997 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Increase (Decrease) in net assets Adjustments to Reconcile Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets to Net Cash Provided by Operations Depreciation Allowance for bad debt Gain on Sale of Equipment (Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets: Prepaids Accounts Receivables Due from Other Funds Deposits Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities: Accounts Payable Accrued Payroll Deferred Revenue Due to State Agencies Net Cash from Operating Activities 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Purchase of Equipment Net Cash from Investing Activities CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Loan Proceeds - Note Payable Net Borrowing - Line of Credit Principal payment of Capital Lease Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 

Unresticted General !'~!rlll 
Temporarily Restriqte~l 

$ (9,911) $(32,531) $ (42,442) 
98,512 208,568 (3,451) (24,718) (514,686) 32,661 
(19,499) 30,178 (150,000) 74.~74 (310.833) 
(86,216) (86.216) 
150,025 101,513 (48,687) 202.851 

2,183 

98,512 208,568 (3,451 ) (24,718) (482,025) 
(19,499) 32,361 (150,000) 74,174 1308.5~0) 
186.21~) 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (194,198) 2,313 (191,885) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD Supplemental Disclosure Cash Paid for Interest See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC Natchitoches, Louisiana NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (A) NATURE OF ACTIVITIES 

Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the Clinic, was organized under the provisions of R.S. 1950, title 12, Chapter 2, as amended, State of Louisiana in December 1977, and recorded in the Non-Profit Corporations Book of the State of Louisiana. The Clinic is organized to provide efficient and effective health care through the operation of a health delivery system designed to meet the medical needs of the community, i.e., early detection diagnosis, and treatment of illnesses and injuries; to facilitate an understanding of the desirability of initiating a program of preventive medicine; and to generally improve and promote the improvement of the community, civilly and socially. The Clinic provides comprehensive primary health care to area residents, with particular care for the socio-economically disadvantaged. The areas served are Tallulah, Leesville, Logansport and Natchitoches. The services are provided through outpatient clinics with a referral program, health education, and limited medical services for hospitalization. The corporation as orgamzed on a non-stock membership basis. Fifty-one (51%) percent of the members of the board are chosen by the population served. After the election of Board Members in December, the officers are seated at the next regularly scheduled meeting in January. In December 1977, Congress passed the Rural Health clinic Services Act of 1977 (Public Law 95-210) to provide financial support for facilities using physician extenders to provide primary health care services in rural, medically underserved areas. The law authorized Medicare and Medicaid payments to qualified rural health clinics for covered health care services furnished by or under the direction of nurse practitioners and physician assistants. In order to qualify as a rural health clinic under Medicare and Medicaid, a facility must be under the general direction of a physician, be located in a rural area and operate in an area designated by the Department of Health and Haman Services as having a shortage of personal health services, be engaged essentially in providing outpatient primary medical care, and meet health and safety requirements prescribed by Medicare and Medicaid regulations. 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC Natchitoches, Louisiana NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
During the year ended January 3 h 1997, the Clinic's operations were funded by a Community Health Service Rural Health Initiative (RHI) Grant awarded under Section 330 of the Public Health Services Act, as amended. Various restrictions are placed on expenditures of these funds. Reconciliations of used and unused fimds are prepared at the end of the program year and the propriety of such funds is determined by the Department of Health and Human Services. (B) REPORTING ENTITY The accompanying financial statements of the Clinic presents the financial position and result of operations of the unrestricted fund and temporarily restricted fund. All activities of the Clinic are included in these financial statements. 
Basis of Accounting 
The financial statements of the Clinic have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities. (C) FUND ACCOUNTING The accounts of the Clinic are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting. Under fund accounting, resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into funds established according to their nature and purpose. Separate accounts are maintained for each fund; however, in the accompanying financial statements, funds that have similar characteristics have been combined into fund groups. In accordance with SFAS No. 117, fund balances are classified on the statement of financial position as unrestricted and temporarily restricted net assets based on the absence or existence and type of donor-imposed restrictions. 
Unrestricted Accounts for resources that can be expended currently. This fund represents the part of net assets that have not been restricted for identified purposes by donors and grantors. Unrestricted net assets also include assets whose use is contractually limited. 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. Natchitoches, Louisiana NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Temporarily Restricted 
Accounts for the WIC Grant funds that can be expended currently, but only for a specified purpose designated by the grantor. (D) BUDGETS A budget outlining grant awards, program revenues and expenses is submitted prior to the start of each fiscal year for approval by the Department of Health and Human Services. Budget amendments and changes are allowed by prior approval from the Department of Health and Human Services. (E) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT Property and equipment is recorded at cost for purchased assets or at fair market value on the date of any donation. Depreciation is provided in the financial statements over the estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets on the straight- line basis. The following estimated useful lives are generally used: 

Building Furniture and fixtures Equipment 40 years 5 - 20 years 5 - 15 years Expenses for additions, major renewals and betterments are capitalized and expenses for maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. 
The cost of assets retired of otherwise disposed of and the related accumulated deprecmaon are eliminated from the accounts in the year of disposal. Gains or losses resuhmg from property disposal are credited as charged to operations currently. 

(F) COMPENSATED ABSENCES Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center's employee benefits for vacation and sick pay do not vest. Accordingly, no amounts are recorded in the financial statements. 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. Natchitoches, Louisiana 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) (G) TOTAL COLUMNS 

Total columns on the financial statements are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position, results of operations or changes in cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. (H) UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS The Clinic estimates an allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable based on prior experience of management. (I) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS For the purpose of the financial statements, the Clinic considers all demand deposits and time deposits with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. (J) INCOME TAX STATUS The Clinic is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(C) (3) of the Internal Revenue code. However, income from certain activities not directly related to the Clinic's tax-exempt purpose is subject to taxation as unrelated business income. In addition, the Clinic qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under Section 190(b) (1) (A) and has been classified as an orgamzation that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a) (2). NOTE2 CASH At year end, the carrying amount of the Clinic's cash was as follows Checking $90,578 All deposits were held in local banks and insured by the FDIC 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC Natchitoches, Louisiana 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

NOTE 3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT A summary of property and equipment and accumulated depreciation at January 31 1997, is provided: 
Beginning Balan,~ Land $ 110,000 Building 1,697,820 Furniture & Equip. 671,426 Vehicles 88,088 Totals $2,5t,7,334 

Ending Additions Disposals Balance 
$71,966 14.250 $86.216 

$ 110,000 (32,269) 1,665,551 743,392 (88.088) 14.250 (120.357) $2.533.193 
Beginning Balance Building $ 475,817 Furniture & Equip. 578,776 Vehicles 88,088 Totals $1.142.681 

NOTE 4 OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Ending Additions Disposals Balance $53,261 42,876 2.375 $98,512 
$ 529,078 621,652 188oX8) 2.375 18X088) $1.153,105 

Other receivables at January 31, 1997, consisted of the folIowing Due form IRS $ 30,532 Sales Tax Receivable 12,224 Sale of Equipment 201 Other 435 Third Party Cost Reimbursement 716,972 Less: Allowance for disputed Cost (146.685) Total 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC Natchitoches, Louisiana NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 
NOTE 4 OTItER RECEIVABLES (continued) In accordance with Ominbus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1989 (OBRA 89) and 1990 (OMBRA 90), reimbursement policies for reasonable cost reimbursement were established for a certain set of Federally-Qualified Health Centers (FQHC) such as the Clinic, rather than reimbursement based upon allowable charges for each service provided. Medicaid reimbursement became effective April 1, 1990 and Medicare, October 1, 1991. At January 31, 1997, amounts due from Medicare and Medicaid fiscal intermediaries were $216,676 and $500,296 respectively. These settlement amounts are subject to audit and adjustment by the fiscal intermediaries. The amounts have been reflected in the financial statements as receivables and revenues, net of an allowance for disputed costs estimated at (25) twenty-five percent for the years ended 1995 and 1996, which have not been settled by fiscal intermediaries. 
NOTE 5 BOARD OF DIRECTORS Each of the following directors served the Clinic without compensation Mr. Oswald Taylor, Sr. Mr. Oliver Simon Ms. Mary Lene Johnson Ms. Rosia Humphrey Mr. Justice Mallard Mr. Huey Daily Ms. Diane Jones Ms. Lue Kennedy Mr. James Calhoun Mr. Tony Wallace Mr. Dennis McGaskey NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES 

President Vice President Secretary 

The Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. evaluates contingencies based upon the best available evidence. The Clinic believes that no allowance for loss contingencies is considered necessary. 
I0 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. Natchitoches, Louisiana NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 
NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES (continued) The principal contingencies are described below: 

Grant Awards The ability of the Clinic's continued operations is contingent upon continued funding from the Public Health Service. 
Unobligated Federal Funds The Clinic's grant fi.mds, including amounts awarded for the current budget period, and estimated or actual unobligated federal funds carried over from prior budget periods are authorized for the Clinic's use only in the current budget period in the amount specified by the PHS awarding office in an approved budget on a Notice of Grant Award. As a result of carryovers ofunobligated grant funds, the total amount of funds available in the grant account may exceed the federal share of the approved budget. Those funds are not automatically available to the Clinic. The PHS awarding office exercises sole discretion as to the use of those funds. Grantor Agencies Amounts received from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed expenses, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability. The amount, if any, of expenses which may be disallowed cannot be determined at this time. 
Ills Information Return Form 990, Internal Revenue Service information return of tax exempt organizations is due on the fifteenth (15th) day of the fifth (5) month following the end of the fiscal year more specifically, June 15. The returns for the fiscal years ended January 31, 1996 and 1997 were not filed on time and are subject to penalties up to $5,000 per year. The Clinic has not recorded a liability in the financial statements for these amounts and expects to have the penalties waived under extenuating circumstances. As of September 30, 1997 this issue had not been resolved. 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. Natchitoches, Louisiana 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 NOTE 7 CAPITAL LEASES 

The Clinic leases several pieces of equipment and a moduiar building at the Tallullah site. Because the leases contain a bargain purchase option, the substance of the leases are that the Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. is financing the acquisition of the assets through the lease, and, accordingly, it is recorded in the Clinic's assets and liabilities. The original cost of the property under capital lease at January 31, 1997 is as follows: Modular Building Phone System ECG Machine Chemistry Analyzer Ultra Sound Machine 
$736,350 12,758 7,100 97,248 $ 39,900 

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases, together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments, as of January 31, 1997: 
YEAR ENDING JANUARY 31, 1998 $216,789 1999 177,472 2000 162,196 2001 146.692 Total Minimum lease payments 703,149 Less - Amount representing interest (129.404) Present Value of Minimum lease payments $573.745 

NOTE 8 OPERATING LEASES 
The Clinic provides health services in leased facilities located in Leesville and Logansport, Louisiana. The facilities are leased from two unrelated parties. Both leases are twelve (12) month operating leases which are renewable by written notice. The Leesville facility lease is cancelabte by mailing a ninety (90) day written notice of intention to terminate. Rental expense for those leases was $37,860 for the year ended January 31, 1997. 

12 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. Natchitoches, Louisiana NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 
NOTE 9 NOTES PAYABLE 

The note payable obiigarona offi:e Llinic at January 51, 1997 are as foilows 
8.25% note payable with the Exchange Bank and Trust Co., the accrued interest and principal are due on April 24, 1997. $150,025 Operating line of credit with the Exchange Bank and Trust Co., bearing a current variable interest rate of 8.25%. The line requires monthly interest only payments with the principal and accrued interest due at maturity on March 15, 1997. The debt is secured by a collateral mortgage note dated March I5, 1996 for $150,000. The line of credit limit is $125,000. 

NOTE I0 DUE TO STATE OF LOUISIANA 
Total 

The Clinic owes the State Department of Health and Hospitals the over paid Medicaid claims of the Delta Rural Health Services in Tallullah and also at the Desoto Comprehensive Health Services in Logansport. The over payment years are 1992, 1993 and 1994. The over claim balances due back are the following: 

NOTE 11 REVENUES 
Desoto Delta Total 

$ 7,248 66.926 $ 74,174 
The Clinic operates principally from grants awarded by federal and state government and generates revenues through patient fee charges. The patient fee charges consisted of the following: 

Medicare Medicaid Sliding Fee (net) Other 
$ 289,840 485,982 473,428 28.153 $1,077,403 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. Natchitoches, Louisiana 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 NOTE 12 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS During the year ended January 31, 1997, the Clinic sold several pieces of equipment and automobiles. These sales were made to two employees and one (1) Board Member. The following table depicts the nature of the transactions: 

Name and Title Willie Valeria, Employee Huey Daily, Board Member Debra Worsham, Employee Car Vans Equip NOTE 13 THIRD PARTY REIMBURSEMENT 
$2,000 551 900 -0- $201 -0- 

In accordance with Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1989 (OBRA 89) and 1990 (OBRA 90), reimbursement policies for reasonable cost rezmbursement were established for a certain set of Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHC) such as the Clinic, rather than reimbursement based upon allowable charges for each service provided. Settlement costs reports completed at year end are subject to audit and adjustment by intermediaries, in particular, United Government Services and Tri-Span. 
NOTE 14 SELF INSURANCE The Clinic's medical plan for eligible employees and their dependents is funded through a self insurance plan. The Clinic has hired a third party administrator to handle all claims and make all payments. The Clinic transfers flmds to a special checking account which is designated to handle only medical payments. After the fimds have been transferred, the third party administrator processes the checks and remits them to the board for approval and signatures. 

14 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC Natchitoches, Louisiana 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

NOTE 15 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 
Certain elTors, rcsuiting in both the overstatement and understatement of previously reported assets, liabilities and expenses of the prior year were corrected this year, resulting in the following changes to net assets as of January 31, 1996: 
Net Assests As previously reported Correction As adjusted 

$1,429,091 (165,460) 
NOTE 16 FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE CLASSIFICATION In accordance with (FASB) NO. 117, the following table depicts all the expenses for the year ended January 31, 1997 in their functional categories. 

Program Services Administrative 
GENERAL FUND $1,880,656 1,470,154 3.350.810 NOTE 17 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

WIC Ft NI) 150,864 156.864 $2,037,520 1,470,154 3.507,674 
At January 31, 1997, the Clinic had a $101,513 line of credit and a note payable in the amount of $150,025 with the Exchange Bank and Trust of Natchitoches. Subsequent to year end, the organization refinanced the two debts into one consolidated note. The note requires a monthly payment of $3,027 over 120 months. The interest rate on the new note is 8.5% with a first payment date of July 3, 1997. In July 1997, the Board of Directors hired a managemem consulting firm to assist in restructuring the operations of the Clinic. The chance, are centered on the following: (A) Fiscal Accountability (B) Personnel (C) Restructured Debt (D) Improved Health Care (E) Corporate Governing Documents 
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NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC Natchitoches, Louisiana 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

NOTE 18 PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABEE 
Accounts receivable at January 31, 1997 consisted of the following Medicare Sliding Fee Medicaid Private Insurance Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles 
Total 

$137,610 72.803 23,522 6,323 (61,883) $178,375 



 

MEMBER AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIEO PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS MEMBER SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS DAUZAT, BEALL & DEBEVEC, CPAs A PIROFE~SIONAJL CORPOP~.T~ ON 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc Natchitoches, Louisiana 
We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of and for the fiscal year ended January 3 I, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 1997. In our report, our opinion was disclaimed because of a scope limitation. We were engaged to audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, "Audits of Institutions of Higher Education and Other Nonprofit Institutions." Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
The management of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. is responsible for establishing and mainlammg au internal control structure. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by m~magement are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of intemal control structure pohcies and procedures. The objectives of an internal control structure are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of inherent limitations in any internal control structure, errors or irregularities may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures may deteriorate. 
I220 WINDSOR PLACE ~ ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 71303 ~ (318) 443-3977 ~ FAX (318) 445-2017 2003 FOURTH STREET, SUITE B ~ JONESVILLE, LOUISIANA 71343 ~ (318) 339-6505 



In planning and performing our engagement to audit the financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center. Inc. for the fiscal year ended January 3I, 1997, we obtained an understanding of the internal control structure. With respect to the internal control structure, we obtained an understanding of the design of relevant policies and procedures and whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed control risk in order to determine our procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal coatrol structure. ~ .,ccording~y, \~ c do not cxpres~ suc'a aL~ opm{on. 
For the purpose of this report, we have classified the significant intemal control structure policies and procedures in the following categories: cash receipts, payroll, property and equipment, cash disbursements and grant administration. 
For all of the internal control structure categories listed above, we obtained an understanding of the design of relevant polices and procedures and determined whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed control risk. Of the management suggestions made for the year ended January 3 I. 1996, the following has been implemented: (A) the employee credentials are now checked. We noted certain matters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions under standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control structure that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the organization's abdlt? to record, process, summarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements. These reportable conditions include 
SLIDING FEES 
Condition: The Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc., did not consistently obtain income verification from patients. Criteria: The rcgulations require that all patients who can pay for services be charged according to a shdmg fee schedule. Effect: If the ~ )rgamzation does not check and document the patient income, the Clinic will not be able to collect all funds due. 
Recommendation: The Clinics should verify all patient income and include documentation in the patient file. 



2. BANK RECONCILIATIONS Condition: Bank reconciliations were not preformed on a regular monthly basis or agreed to the general ledger cash accounts. Criteria: Grant recipients are required to safeguard all assets of the organization. Effect: The organization could have misappropriated grant funds and not be aware of the problem in a timely manner. Recommendation: All bank accounts should be reconciled monthly with their corresponding bank statements and should be compared to the books to insure that they agree. PURCHASING SYSTEM 
Condition: The current system does not ensure that purchases of supplies and materials are made for the lowest available price. As a recipient of federal dollars, the organization is permitted to purchase goods from vendors under the Louisiana State contract. Criteria: Organizations receiving federal assistance must adhere to allowable costs/cost principles. The grant goes further to require that all purchases for goods be necessary and reasonable for the proper administration of the program. Effect: The resulting effect is that the organization will pay more for goods than is necessary or reasonable. 
Recommendation: The organization should centralize the purchasing function and purchase as many items as possible under state contract. 
CONTRACT VIOLATIONS 
Condition: We noted that the orgamzation was not making monthly payments under two (2) of their capital leases. Criteria: The lease contracts require that the organization make monthly payments under the terms of the agreement. Effect: If the organization is found by the lessor to be in default of the terms in the agreement, the lessor could require the return of the asset. 
Recommendation: In order to avoid undue hardship on the organization, all requirements under contractual agreement should be adhered to. 
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941 PAYROLL TAX RETURN 
Condition: The payroll tax liability reported on the form 941 was incorrect 
Criteria: For the year ended December 31, 1996, the organization did not limit the amount of social security tax paid for individuals who earn more than $62,700. Effect: The orgamzation overpaid the social security payroll tax. 
Recommendation: The organization should review the tax rules published in the Circular E, Employer's Tax Guide. 
COST REPORTS 
Condition: The organization did not file the Medicare and Medicaid cost reports for 1996 and 1997 in a timely manner. 
Criteria: In order for the organization to recover amounts due for Medicaid and Medicare claims, the organization is required to file annual cost reports. Effect: The funds due the organization will not be paid over in a timely manner 
Recommendation: The organization should take steps to ensure that the cost reports are filed by the due date. 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Condition: The fin,mcialtransactions for the year ended January31, 1997 were not posted to a general ledger 
Criteria: OMB Circular A- 110 requires that the financial management system provide an accurate, current and complete disclosure of the financial results of each federally sponsored project. Effect: Irregularities could occur as a result of not having an accounting system in accordance with grant requirements. Recommendation: In order to reduce the risk of errors or irregularities, the accounting system should record all financial transactions in the books in a timely manner. 



RESULTS OF OPERATION 
Condition: The financial position of the organization was not compared to the budget on a regular basis. Criteria: OMB Circular A- 110 requires that the financial management system provide a comparison of outlays ~ ~th budget amounts for each av~.ra. Effect: The organization was unable to properly manage grant results Recommendation: The financial statements should be compared to the budget on a regular basis. 

9. FIXED ASSETS 
Condition: Policies that are established to control which assets are capitalized or expended are not being followed. 
Criteria: OMB Circular A-110 requires that the financial management system provide effective controls over and accountability of all property. Effect: Without the utilization of property controls, it is possible for the misappropriation of corporate assets. 
Recommendation: Control policies should be modified to ensure that all assets which cost a predetermined amount are being capitalized and recorded on the asset inventory list. 10. PROPERTYTAGS 
Condition: The fixed assets do not have property control tags 
Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A- 11 O, recipients of federal assistance should adequately safeguard all assets. 
Effect: Without the assets being tagged, it will not be readily possible to know which assets belong to the corporation. Recommendation: The items purchased, which meet requirements established by the board for fixed assets, should have an identifying sticker or decal affixed to it. The sticker should have an identifying property number and it should also state that the asset is property of the Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center. Inc. 



11. ASSET INVENTORY LIST 
Condition: The inventory list, which serves to control all fixed assets, did not adequately identify the assets owned by the Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. Criteria: In order to safeguard the assets in accordance with the OMB Circular. the asset inventory iist should be complete. 
Effect: Without all assets being recorded on the asset list, the organization will not be able to adequately safeguard all assets. 
Recommendation: All assets recorded on the asset inventory list should be identified by a serial number when possible and a tag ID number. 12. PHYSICAL INSPECTION - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
Condition: The organization does not formally conduct a physical inventory of property and equipment on an annual basis. Criteria: In accordance with the OMB Circular A-110, the recipients of federal assistance should adequately safeguard all assets. Effect: Unless someone conducts a physical inspection on an annual basis, fixed assets could be misappropriated. Recommendation: The organization should have someone from the accounting department conduct an annual physical inventory. 

13. SALESTAX Condition: Tile orgamzation has been paying $488.97 a month in sales tax on the capital lease of the modular budding in Tallullah. 
Criteria: In accordance with state law, the organization is not responsible for sales tax on a modular building which is erected and permanently fixed to the location. Effect: The organization incorrectly paid sales tax to G.E. Capital Recommendation: The organization should approach G.E. Capital and make every attempt to reduce the capital lease obligation by the overpaid sales tax. 
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14. LEASE AGREEMENTS 
Condition: We noted that some of the lease documents were not on file within the office Criteria: In order to properly execute all contractual obligations, the clinic should maintain all contracts in their current files. Effect: Without having the contracts readily available for inspection, the organization could violate the terms of the agreement and be exposed to monetary loss. Recommendation: All contracts should be maintained in the office 

15. FORM 990 TAX RETURN 
Condition: Form 990, annual income tax return, was not filed on time for the years ended January 31, 1996 and 1997. Criteria: Internal Revenue procedures require that the returns be filed by the fifteenth (15) day of the fifth month following the close of the fiscal year. Effect: The organization could be subjected to penalties up to $5,000 per year per return. Recommendation: The organization should have the returns prepared and filed in a timely manner. 16. LATE AUDIT REPORT 
Condition: The organization did not file their January 31, 1997 audit report with the State of Louisiana or their cognizant agency within the required time flame. Criteria: In accordance with State law, the audit should be filed with the State of Louisiana within six (6) months from the close of the fiscal year. The United State Department of Health and Human Services requires that the audit be filed within four (4) months. Effect: The organization could possibly be subjected to further grant restrictions. Recommendation: The organization should take steps to ensure that the audit is preformed in a timely manner. 17. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
Condition: The accounts payable subsidiary joumal was not maintained on a regular basis and did not agree to the general ledger. 
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Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A-110, the financial management system should provide for current and accurate disclosure of the financial activities. Effect: The organization was not able to properly analyze their financial position Recommendation: Steps should be taken to ensure that all accounts pavable ontstand ng arc rccordcd on me booKb and arc ll.btC~ ,)I1 the2 sui~sldiarv jotlillal [3) \cnuuf anu ;_[lqq_OUll[. 18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE Condition: The accounts receivable subsidiary journal was not maintained on a regular basis and did not agree to the general ledger. Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A-1 I0, the financial management system should provide for current and accurate disclosure of the financial activities. Effect: The organization was not able to properly analyze their financial position 
Recommendation: Steps should be taken to ensure that all accounts receivable outstanding are recorded on the books and are listed in the subsidiary journal by vendor and amount. 

19. LOUISIANA STATE GRANT Condition: The ,,rgamzation returned to the State of Louisiana a grant amount of $150,000. 
Criteria: The grant could have been used for operational purposes 
Effect: Ineffective cash management system 
Recommendation: Attempts should be made to recover the returned grant funds 20. MEDICAL SUPPLIES INVENTORY 
Condition: The organization does not fbrmally conduct a physical inventory on an annual basis. 
Criteria: In accordance with the OMB Circular A-110, the recipients of Federal Assistance should adequately safeguard all assets. 
Effect: Unless someone conducts a physical inspection on an annual basis, supplies could be misappropriated. 
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Recommendation: The organization should have someone conduct an annual physical inventory. 
21. SALE OF ASSETS 
Condition: The organization sold several pieces of equipment without a formal bid process. Criteria: In order to receive the maximum dollars lol the items sold, the organization should have a policy to authorize the sale of assets through a bid process or through an external valuation procedure. Effect: The organization was not allowed to sell assets to the hlghcst bidder or receive the true value of the assets sold. 
Recommendation to acquire an external Before any assets are sold, the accounting department should attempt valuation or perform a public bid process. 22. STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 
Condition: The state quarterly payroll tax retums for the third and fourth quarter of 1996 were not filed or paid on time. Criteria: The organization is required to file and pay the aforementioned reports by October 31, 1996 and January 31, 1997. 
Effect: Due to the failure to file and pay, the organization will be subjected to unnecessary. penalties and interest. 
Recommendation: All tax filing and paying deadlines should be strictly adhered to 23. PAYROLL TAX DEPOSITS Condition: The federal payroll tax coupon forms 8109 for the year were marked for the incorrect type of tax. 
Criteria: The organization is required to deposit and pay form 941 taxes to a banking institution. Effect: Due to the failure to appropriately mark the tax coupons, the Clinic didn't receive proper credit. 
Recommendation: Tax coupons should be appropriately marked by a responsible individual. 
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24. EMPLOYEE W-2 FORMS Condition: The social security tax and social security wages were incorrectly reported on some of the W-2's for the year ended December 31, 1996. Criteria: The social security wages exceeded the cap of $62,700 
Effect: As a result of reporting social security wages higher than the cap, the social security withheld and reported on the W-2 was incorrect. 
Recommendation: The amount withheld and reported on the W-2's should be in accordance with the Circular E, Employer's Tax Guide. 25. WIC REIMBURSEMENT REQUESTS 

Criteria: The grant requires that all original grant documents be kept on file for a minimum of four (4) years. Effect: The organization could be subjected to increased grant restrictions 
Recommendation: All original grant source documents should be kept on file for a period of four (4) years. 

26. WIC DISBURSEMENTS 
Condition: Disbursement checks were made payable to cash 
Criteria: The WIC Program grant requires all checks be made payable to a vendor Effect: The organization could be subjected to increased grant restrictions Recommendation: In the furore, checks should be made payable to the recipient and not cash. 27. WIC EXPENDITURE REPORT 
Condition: When requesting reimbursement funds, the organization did not complete and submit a disbursement report for the month and for the grant period according to budget category. 
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Criteria: The grant requires that recipients submit a monthly expenditure report consisting of two (2) columns, current expenses and a year to date, categorized by budget category. Effect: The organization could be subjected to increased grant restrictions Recommendation: The ~~r~anl7_ation should follow all grant requirements in the contract 28. RHi ,'AYROLL AUTHORIZATION 
Condition: Several of the rural health grant employees did not have an authorized payroll amount documented in their file. 
Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the rural health grant should have their authorized payroll on file. 
Effect: As a result of not updating the employees' files for payroll chang:c, it is impossible to tell whether employees were correctly paid. 
Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on file 

29. Rill PAYROLL DISBURSEMENTS 
Condition: Several of the rural health grant employees" payroll did not agree to their authorized payroll amount documented in their file. 
Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the rural health grant should have their authorized payroll on file. Effect: As a result of not updating the employees' files for payroll changes, it is impossible to tell whether the employees were correctly paid. Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amotmts should be on file 

30. WIC PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION 
Condition: Several of the WIC grant employees did not have an authorized payroll amount documented in their file. 
Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the WIC grant should have their authorized payroll on file. Effect: If the authorized payroll amount is not on file, it is possible to incorrectly pay employees. 
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Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on file 31. WIC PAYROLL DISBURSEMENTS 
Condition: "c~ era[ ~l the WIC grant employees' payroll did not agree to their authorized payroll amoum documented in their file. 
Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the WIC grant should have their authorized payroll on file. 
Effect: As a result of not updating the employees' files for payroll changes, it is impossible to tell whether the employees were correctly paid. Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on file 

32. PATIENT CONFIDENTIALITY STATEMENT 
Condition: S~me of the personnel files on the WIC Program employees did not contain a signed patient confidentiality statement. 
Criteria: The grant requires that employees with access to patient information sign a statement that all patient records are confidential. Effect: The grant support could possibly be reduced. Recommendation: All employee files should be updated to ensure that they contain a signed patient confidentiality statement. 33. TIME SHEETS 
Condition: As a result of our tests, we noted that some of the WIC Program employee pay checks were not supported by time sheets. Criteria: The grant requires that all activities be supported by source documents 
Effect: The grant support could possibly be reduced. Recommendation: All WIC Program pay checks should be supported by approved time sheets. 
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34. CORPORATE BYLAWS 
Condition: The Board of Directors current Composition and Bylaws do not fully meet the requirements for the 42CFR 581 c.304. Criteria: The RHI Grant requires that the composition and selection of members be in accordance with the requirements of 42CFR 5~ ! c.30 L Effect: Failure of the governing board to meet the RHI Grant requirements, could result in grant restrictions. 
Recommendation: The Board should take steps to follow all federal mandates of the RHI Grant. 

35. AUTHORIZING SIGNATURES Condition: Some of the pay checks for the WIC Program did not contain two (2) authorizing signatures. Criteria: All checks are required to have two (2) authorized signatures 
Effect: Without the correct number of authorized signatures, disbursements could be made without direct Board approval. Recommendation: All checks should have two (2) authorized signatures 

36. PAID INVOICES 
Condition: There were instances where some of the invoices for the WIG Program could not be located. 
Criteria: As per the grant contracts, the organization is required to keep source documents on file for at least (4) years. Effect: The organization could possibly have increased grant restrictions 
Recommendation: We recommend that all invoices be kept on file and canceled with the carbon copy of the check stapled to the outside. 
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A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more oft,he intemal control structure elements does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors and irregularities in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal ~.ourse of performing their assigned functions. 
Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose aii matters in the internal control structure that mlglat be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses as defined above. However, we believe if taken cumulatively the reportable conditions described above are a material weakness. These conditions were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of the procedures to be performed in our examination of the financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. for the year ended January 3 I, 1997. This report is intended for the information of the board of directors, management and the United States Department of Health and Haman Services. However, this report is a matter of public record, and its distribution is not limited. 
Certified Public Accountants September 30, 1997 
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MEMBER AMERICAN )NST/TUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS MEMBER SOCIETY Or LOUISIANA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS DAUZAT, BEALL & DEBEVEC, CPAs A pROFESSIONAL CCRPOItATION 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

To the Board of Directors Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc Natchitoches, Louisiana 
We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of and for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 1997. In our report, our opinion was disclaimed because of a scope limitation. We were engaged to audit in accordance ~th generally accepted auditing standards, Q0vemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, "Audits of Institutions of Higher Education and Other Nonprofit Institutions." Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. Compliance with laws. regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. is the responsibility of the Organization's management. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc.'s compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. However, the objective of our engagement to audit the financial statements was not to provide an opinion on overall compliance with such provisions. Accordmgb, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed the following instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported herein under Government Auditing Standards for which the ultimate resolution cannot presently be determined. Accordingly, no provision for any liability that may result has been recognized in Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc.'s January 31, 1997 financial statements. The conditions of noncompliance tested are described below 
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SLIDING FEES 

Dollar Number Number of Dollar Amount Number of of Items Not Dollar Amount of Items Amount of Items in Items in Amount of Items Not ill Questioned Population Tested Compliance Population Tested Comoliance Costs 
Condition: The Natchltoches 10,530 t00 (~ulpallent Medical Center ',no, (lit! ,I~ . ?11 i,Ic~?[[~ i~dllt I[1con]f VCrltiCatloU Irom patients Criteria: The regulations require that all patients who can pay for services be charged according to a shding t~e schedule. Effect: If the Organization does not check and document the patient income, the Clintc will not be able to collect all funds due Recommendation: lhc Chnlcs should verify all patient income and include documentation in the patient file 2. BANK RECONCILIATIONS Condition: Bank reconciliations were 24 24 24 * not prelbrmed on a regular monthly basis or agreed to the generat ledger cash accounts Criteria: Grant recipients are reqmred to safeguard all assets of the organization Effect: The organization could have misappropriated grant thnds and not be aware ofthe problem in atmlely manner Recommendation: All bank accounts should be reconciled monthly with their corresponding bank statements and should be compared to the books to insure that they agree. 3. PURCHASING SYSTEM Conditmn; l'he current system does not ensure that purchases ofsupphes and materials are made for the lowest available price As a recipient of federal dollars, the organization is permitted to purchase goods from vendors under the Louisiana State contract Criteria: Organizations receiving federal assistance must adhere to allowable costs/cost principles The grant goes lurther to reqmre that all purchases for goods be necessary and reasonable for the proper admimstratlon of the program. 
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Number of Items in Population 
PURCIIASING SYSTEM [continued Effect: The resulting el]~ct is that the orgamzatlon will pay more for goods than Is necessary, or reasonable I~.eeommendauon: ihc orgamzatlon should centralize the purchasing t~nctlon and purchase as many items as possible under state contract CONTRACT VIOLATIONS 

Number of Items Not Dollar in Amount of Compliance Population 

Condition: We noted that the 7 organization was not making monthly payments under two (2) ofthetr capital [eases, Criteria: ] be lease contrz, cts require that the olganlzatlon make monthly payments under the terms of the agreement Effect: If the organization is fbund by the lessor to be m delault oflhe terms in the agreement, the lessor could require the return of the asset. Recommendation: In order to avoid undue hardship on the organization, all requirements under contractual agreement should be adhered to 941 PAYROLL TAX RETURN Condition: The payroll tax liabdity reported on the fbrm 941 was incorrect Criteria: For the year ended December 31, 1996. the organization did not hmit the amount of social security tax paid for individuals who earn more than $62,700 Effect: The organtzaUon overpaid the soctal security payroll tax Recommendation: rhe organization should review the tax rules pubhshed in the Circular E, Employer's Tax Grade COST REPORTS 

2 

Condition: The orgaatzauon did 10 10 10 * not file the Medicare and Medicatd cost reports for 1996 and 1997 in a timely manner *Effecl ts either normal, not ascertainable or not apphcable 
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Amount of Questioned Costs 



6. COST REPORTS (continued 
Number Number of of Items in Items Population Tested 

Criteria: In order for the organization to recover amounts due lOT Medicaid and Medic,we ~lam~,,, ttle org:it~tzatlun Is icqu~red to tile annual cost reports Effect: The funds due the orgamzation will not be paid over in a timely manner Recommendation: The organization should take steps to ensure that the cost reports are filed by the due date. 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Condition: The financial transactions for the year ended January 3 I. 1997 were not posted to a general ledger Criteria: OMB Circular A-110 requires that the financial management system provide an accurate, current and complete disclosure of the financial results of each federally sponsored project Effect: Irregularities could occur as a result of not having an accounting system m accordance wilh grant requirements Recommendation: In order to reduce the risk of errors or irregularities, the accounting system should record all financial transactions nl the books ~n a t~mely manner. 8. RESULTS OF OPERATION Condition: The financial position of the organization was not compared to the budget on a regular basis. Criteria: OMB Circular A- 110 requires that the fittanclal management system provide a comparison of outlays with budget amounts for each award Effect: The organization was unable to properly manage grant results 
*Efl~ct is etther normal, not ascertainable or not applicable 34 

Number of Items Not Dollar in Amount o| ('omnhance Population 
Dollar Amount of Items Amount oI Not in Questioned Compliance Costs 



 

Number Number of of Items in Items Population Tested 
RESULTS OF OPERATION (continued) Recommendation: The financial statements should he compared to ebe t,t~d~et Or:l ,~ r :aular oasis. FIXED ASSETS Condition: Policies that are established to control which assets are capitahzed or expended are not being fbllowed Criteria: OMB Circular A-110 requires that the financial management system provide effective controls over and accouatabthty of all property Effect: Without the utdizatlon of property controls, it is possible for the misappropriation of corporate assets. Recommendation: Control polioes should be modified to ensure that all assets which cost a predetermined amount are being capitalized and recorded on the asset inventory list PROPERTY TAGS Condition: The fixed assets do * not have property control tags. Criter ta: in accordance wtth OMB Circular A-I I0, rec:ptents ot" federal asststance should adequately safeguard all assets Fff~ct Without the assets being ta;.egt d iI will not be readily p~lble t0 know which assets belong to the corporation. Recommendation: The items purchased, which meet requirements established by the board for fixed assets, should have an tdentifymg sticker or decal affixed to it. The sticker should have an ldeatd~cmg property, number and It should also state that the asset is property o! the Natchdoches Outpatleat Medical Center. Inc. 

*Effect Is either normal, not ascertainable or not applicable 
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ASSET INVENTORY LIST 
Dollar Number Number of Dollar Amount Number of of Items Not Dollar Amount of Items Amount of Items in Items in Amount of Items Not in Questioned Population Tested Compliance Population Tested Compliance Costs 

Condition: 7he inventory list. * which serves to control all fixed assets, did not adequately identify the a~cts ox~ncd b~ the Natc~llt~chcs (~atpatlent Medical Ceuter, luc Criteria: In order to safeguard the assets in accordance with the OMB Circular, the asset inventory, list should be complete Effect: Without all assets being recorded on the asset list, the organization will not be able to adequately safeguard all assets Recommendation: All assets recorded on the asset inventory hst should be Identified by a serial number when possthle and a tag ID number PHYSICAL INSPECTION - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT Condition: "File organlzatton * * * does not formally conduct a physical inventory of property and equipment on an annual basis Criteria: In accordance with the OMB Circular A-110, the recipients of federal assistance should adequately safeguard all assets Effect: Unless someone conducts a physical mspection on an annual basis, fixed assets could be nusapproprlated Recommendation: I'he orgamzauon should have someone from the accounting department conduct an annual physical inventory SALESTAX Condition: The organization has been paying $488.97 a month In sales tax on the capital lease of the modular building in Tallullah Criteria: In accordance with state law, the organlzatton is not responstble for sales tax on a modular braiding which is erected and permanently fixed to the location Effect: The organization incorrectly paid sales tax to G E Capital. 
*Effect is either normal, not ascertainable or not apphcable 36 



3. SALES TAX (continued Recommendation: The organization should approach G E Capital and make eve~ attcmI~t to reduce the ca~:tal lease ohhgatloll Dv Ihc overpaid sales tax LEASEAGREEMENTS 

Dollar Number Number of Dollar Amount Number of of Items Not Dollar Amount of Items Amount of Items in Items in Amount of Items Not in Questioned Pooulation Tested ~ Poonlation Tested Compliance Costs 

Condition: We noted that some 7 of the lease documents were not on file within the office Criteria: In order to properly execute all contractual obhgations, the clinic should maintain al~ contracts in their current files Effect: Without having the contracts readily available for inspection, the organizanon could violate the terms of the agreement and be exposed to monetary loss Recommendation: All contracts should be maintained m the office FORM 990 TAX RETURN Condition: Form 990, annual 2 2 2 income tax return, was not filed on time for the years ended January 31, 1996 and 1997 Criteria: Internal Revenue procedures require that the returns be filed by the fifteenth (15) day of the fifth month foIIowmg the close of the fiscal year Effect: The organization could be subjected to penalties up to $5,000 per year per return Recommendation: The organization should have the returns prepared and flied in a timely manner LATE AUDIT REPORT Condition: Tile organization did not file their January 3 I, [ 997 audit report with the State of Louisiana or their cognizant agency within the reqmred time frame. 
*Effect Is either normal, not ascertainable or not applicable 
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Number of Items in Population 
6. LATE AUDIT REPORT (continued Criteria: In accordance wLth State law. the audit should be filed with the Sta~e of Louisiana wtthm sl~ (6) ,'qomh. lium the close ol the fiscal Jear i11~ United State Dcpartn~ent of Health and Human Servmes requires that the autht be filed within four (4) months Effect: The orgamzatthn could possibly be subjected to further grant restrictions Recommendation: The organlzatton should take steps to ensure that the audit is prelbmaed in a timely 7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Condition: The accounts payable subsldia/y journal was not maintained on a regular basis and did not agree to the general ledger Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A-110. the financial management system should provide for current and accurate disc[osllre of the financial activities. Effect: The organization was not able to properly analyze their financial position. Recommendation: Steps should be taken to ensure that all accounts payable outstanding are recorded on the books and are listed on the subsidiary, journal by vendor and amount. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE Condition: The accounts recmvable subsidiary journal was not mamtamed on a dady basis and did not agree to the general ledger. Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A-110, the financial mar~agem*:r,t s~5~,em ~h~6 ~o'~6e for current and accurate disclosure of the financial activities Effect: The organtzattou was not able to properly analyze their financial position 
*Effect ts either normal, not ascertainable or not applicable 38 
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Number of Items m Population ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) Recommendation: Steps should be taken to ensure that all accounts receivable outstanding are recorded on the books and are listed tn the st~bsltlmry journal by vendor and amount. 9. LOUISIANA STATE GRANT Condition: The orgafuzanon refunded to the State of Loutstana a grant amount of $150,000 Criteria: The grant could have been used for operational purposes Effect: Ineffective cash management system Recommendation: Attempts should he made to recover the returned grant funds, 20. MEDICAL SUPPLIES INVENTORY 

Dollar Number of Dollar Amount Items Not Dollar Amount of Items Amount of in Amount of Items Not in Questioned Comulianee Population Teste...._fld Comphance Cost_._.~s 

Condition: The organization does not formally conduct a physical inventory on an annual b~sis, Criteria: In accordance with the OMB Circular A-110, the recipients of Federal Assistance should adequately safeguard all assets Effect: Unless someone conducts a physical inspection on an annual basis, supphes could be misappropriated Recommendation: I'he organtzatlon shoutd have someone conduct an ant~ual physical inventory 21. SALE OF ASSETS Condition: The organization sold several pieces ofeqmpment without a lbrmal bid process CriIeria: In order to receive the maxamum dollars for the ttems sold, the organization should have a pohcy to atlthorlze the sale of assets throtlgh a btd process or through an external valuation procedure 
*Effect Is either normal, not ascertainable or not applicable. 39 



21. SALE OF ASSETS (continued Effect: The organization was not allowed to sell assets to the highest btdder or tecetve the ~ruc value ol the assLt~ sold Recommendation: Before any assets are sold, the accounting department should attempt to acquire an external valuation or perform a public hid process 

Dollar Number Number of Dollar Amount Number of of Items Not Dollar Amount of Items ~.mount of Items in Items in ~mount of Items Notin Questioned Population Tested (~ompliance PoPulation Tested Compliance Cost___ ss 

22. STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX Condition: The state quarterly 4 payroll tax returns lbr the third and fourth quarter of 1996 were not filed or paid on time Criteria: The organization is required to file and pay the albrc mentioned reports by October 31. 1996 and 
Effect: Due to the failure to file and pay, the organizahon will be subjected to unnecessary penalties and interest, Recommendation: All tax filing and paying deadlines should be strictly adhered to 23. PAYROLL TAX DEPOSITS Condition: The federal payroll ta~ coupons lbrms 8109 for the year were marked for the incorrect type of tax Criteria: The organlzatton ts required to deposit and pay form 94 taxes to a banking institution Effect: Due to the failure to appropriately mark the tax coupons, the Clinic didn't receive proper credit Recommendation: Tax coupons should be appropriately marked by a responsible individual 

*Effi:ct is either normal, not ascertainable or not applicable 



24. EMPLOYEE W-2 FORMS 
Number of Items in Population 

Dollar Number of Dollar Amount Items Not Dollar Amount of Items ~moun~ of in .Amount of Items Not in Qut,nmud C omgliance Population Tested Compltanee ( q,~t..._~ 
Condition: The social security 72 72 8 tax and social security wages were incorrectly reported on ,ome (,t ~he \~ -2's fbr ~.lc year curled Dccclrmer 31. 1096 Criteria: The somal security wages exceeded the cap of $62.700 Effect: AS a result of reporting socxal security wages higher than the cap. the social security vdthheld and reported on the W-2 was mcorrect Recommendation: The amount withheld ,and reported on the W-2'g should be in accordance with the C'trcular E, Employer's Tax (Tutde 25. WIC REIMBURSEMENT REQUESTS Condition: The orgamzatton 24 could not locate copies of the WIC Program's reimbursement reports for the period February 1996 thru July 1996 Asaresult. the organization had to obtain copies from the State. Criteria: The grant requires that all original grant documents be kept on file for a mlmmum ol four 
Effect: The organlzanon could be subjected to increased grant restrictions Recommertdatie, n: All original grant source documents should be kept on file for a period of four (4) years 26. WIC DISBURSEMENTS 

2 * * 

Condition: Disbursement 142 10 2 $8,986 $4,082 $160 $160 checks were made payable to cash. Criteria: The WIC Program grant requtres all checks be made payable to a vendor 
*Effect ts eLther normal, not ascertainable or not apphcable. 
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Number Number of of Items in Items Population Tested 26. WIC DISBURSEMENTS (continued) Effect: The organization could be subjected to mcre~ed grant resfflctlons Recommendation: In till t,l~/re chcc~:~, sht,ttld hc made pah, ahic ii) the recipient and not cash WICEXPENDITURER~PORT Condrtion: When requesting rmmbursement funds, the organization did not complete and submit a disbursement report for the month and for the grant pertod according to budget category Criteria: The grant requires that rempients submit a monthly expenditure report consistt~g ot two (2) columns, current expenses and a year to date, categortzed by budget category Effect: The otgantzation could be sobjected to increased grant restrictions Recommendation: The organizatton should follow all grant requirements in the contract. 28. RHI PAYROLL AUTItORIZATION Condition: Several of the rural health grant employees dtd not have an authortzed payroU amount documented in thetr file Criteria: In order to comply ,~ gt e, ttt ~equ~temea~, all employees under the rural health grant should have thetr authorized payroll on file Effect: As a result of not updating the employees' files for payroll changes, tt is impossible to tell whether employees were correctly paid Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on file 

*Effect ts either normal, not ascertainable or not applicable 
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Number of Items Not Dollar in Amount of Compliance Population 
Dollar Amount of ltems ~.mounl of Not in I )ut ~lloued Comoliante ~ ~,.t~ 



 
Number Number of af Items in Items Pupulation Tested 29. RHI PAYROLL DISBURSEMENTS 
Number of Items Not Dollar in Amount of Compliance Pol)ulatlon 

Condition: Several of the rural 56 25 9 health grant employee's payroll did not agree to cheer authortzed payroll amount documented zn their file Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the rural health grant should have their authorized payroll on file Effect: AS a result of ~x~t updating the employees' files for payroll changes, it is impossible to tell whether the employees were correctly paid Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on Iile 30. WIC PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION Condition: Several of the WIC 16 12 8 * grant employees d~6 not have an authorized payroll amount documented in thetr file Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the WIC grant should have their authorized payroll on file Effect: if the authurtzed p~Lvrol amount is not on file, it is possible to incorrectly pay employees Recommendation: All current ~.uthorized payroll amounts should be on file WIC PAYROLL DISBURSEMENTS Condition: Several of the WIC 16 grant employees' payroll did not agree to their authortzed payroll amount documented in their file Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the WIC grant should have their authorized payroll on file 
*Effect ]s either normal, not ascertainable or not applicable 
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2 * * 

Dollar Amount of Items Amount of Not in Questioned Compliance Costs 



Number o[ Items in Population 
WIC PAYROLL DISBURSEMENTS (continued) 

Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on file 32, PATIENT CONFIDENTIALITY STATEMENT 

Number of Items Not Dollar in Amount oI Compliance Population 

Condition: Some ofthe personnel I6 12 6 files on the WIC Program employees did not contain a signed patient cotlfidenttahty statement. Criteria: The grant requires that employees with access to patient information sign a statement that all patient records are confidenttal Effect: The grant support could possibly be reduced. Recommendation: All employee files should be updated to ensure that they contain a signed patient confidentiality statement 33. TIME SHEETS 

Dollar Amount Items Tes~ed_ 

Condition: Asaresultofour 226 23 2 $137,369 $10,023 testS, we noted that some of the WIC Program employee pay checks were not supported by ttme sheets Criteria [he grant requires that all a~tlx itle, he supported by source documents Effect: The grant support could posstbly be reduced. Recommendation: All WIC Program pay checks should be supported hy approved time sheets. 34. CORPORATE BYLAWS Condition: The Board of * Directors current Composttlon and Bylaws do not fully meet the requirements for the 42CFR 581c.304. 
*Effect is either normal, not ascertainable or not applicable 

Amount of Questioned Costs 

$563 



Number of Items in PormlaUon 34. CORPORATE BYLAWS (continued) Criteria: The p.~lr Gr~-t requ'res that the composition and ~~ Ic~llon of members be in ac~,,rd m,, ~lth the requirements ol z_N 112 -~, Ic 304 Effect: Failure oI the eovcrnmg board to meet the Rill Grant requirements, could result in grant restrictions Recommendation: The Board should take steps to tb[low all federal mandates of the RHI Grant 35. AUTHORIZING SIGNATURES 

Number of Items Not Dollar in Amount of Coml3liauee Population Dollar Amount Items "Vested Amount oI Questioned Costs 

Condition: Someofthepay 226 23 1 $137,369 $10,023 486 checks Ibr the WIC Program did not contain two (2) authorizing signatures Criteria: All checks are reqmred to have two (2) authorized signatures Effect: Without the correct number of authorized signatures, disbursements could be made without direct Board approval Recommendation: All checks should have two (2) authorized signatures 36. PAID INVOICES Condition: There were instances 142 10 10 $8,986 $4.082 where some of the invoices for the WIC Program could not be located Criteria: As per the grant contracts. the organization is required to keep source documents on file for at least (4) years Effect: The organization could possibly have increased grant restrictions Recommendation: We recommend that all invoices be kept on file and canceled with the carbon copy of the check stapled to the outside 

*Effect is either normal, not ascertainable or not applicable 
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Total 

$4.082 



We considered these instances of noncompliance in assessing whether Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc.'s January 31, 1997 financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, and this report does not affect our report dated September 30, 1997, on those financial statements. This report is intended for the information of the States Department of Health and Human Services. and its distribution is not limited. 
Certified Public Accountants September 30, 1997 
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board of directors, management and the United However, this report is a matter of public record 



 

M~MBER AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS DAUZAT, BEALL & DEBEVEC, CPAs A PROFESSION,~L CORPORATION INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL AWARDS 
To the Board of Directors Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc Natchitoches, Louisiana 

MEMB[R SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of and for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 1997. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization's management. In our report, our opinion was disclaimed because of a scope limitation. 
We were engaged to audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Audltln~ Standards. issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the provisions of Office ol Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of Institutions of Higher Education and Other Nonprofit Institutions." Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the engagement to audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We were unable to express an opinion on the financial statements because of a scope limitation. Our engagement to audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. taken as a whole, The accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The information in that schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the engagement to audit the basic financial statements and due to the scope limitation, we are unable to express an opinion on the Schedule of Federal Awards and to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
Certified Public Accountants September 30, 1997 
1220 WINDSOR PLACE ~ ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 71303 ~ (318) 443-3977 ~ FAX (318) 445-2017 2003 FOURTIf STREET, SUITE B ~ JONESVILLE, LOUISIANA 71343 ~ (318) 339-6505 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ PASS THROUGH GRANTOR/ 

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE Direct Assistance 

FEDERAL CFDA NIJMBER AGENCY PASS-THROUGH NUMBER DISBURSEMENTS/ EXPENDITURES 

Community Health Center Rural Health Initiative Grant (PO-II)* 93.224 CSH600-53-110 $ 1,877,043 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE Passed through Louisiana Department of Health and Hospitals: Women, Infant and Children (W1C)* 10.557 N/A 
Total Expenditures 

*Major Federal Awards Program 
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MEMBER AMERICAN INSTmJTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS MEMBER SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA CERTiFiED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS DAUZAT, BEALL & DEBEVEC, CPAs A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE USED IN ADMINISTRATING FEDERAL AWARDS 
To the Board of Directors Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc Natchitoches, Louisiana We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of and for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 1997. We have also audited the compliance of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. with requirements applicable to major federal award programs and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 1997. We conducted our engagement to audit the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, "Audits of Institutions of Higher Education and Other Nonprofit Institutions." Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and about whether Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. complied with laws and regulations, noncompliance with which would be material to a major federal award program. In planning and performing our engagement to audit for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1997, we considered the internal control structure of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. in order to determine our procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. and on its compliance with requirements applicable to major programs and to report on the internal control structure in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. This report addresses our consideration of internal control structure policies and procedures relevant to compliance with requirements applicable to federal award programs. We have addressed internal control structure policies and procedures relevant to our engagement to audit of the financial statements in a separate report dated September 30, 1997. 
1220 WINDSOR PLACE ~ ALEXANDII/A, LOUISIANA 71303 ~ (318) 443-3977 ~ FAX (318) 445-2017 2003 FOURTH STREET, SUITE B ~ JONESV1LLE. LOUISIANA 71343 * (318) 339-6505 



The management of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure policies and procedures. The objectives of an internal control structure are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, that transactions are executed in accordance with ,n~.nagement's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of fin:racial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that the federal award program is managed in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Because of inherent limitations in any internal control structure, errors, irregularities, or instances of noncompliance may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures may deteriorate. For the purpose of this report, we have classified the significant internal control structure policies and procedures used in administering federal award programs in the following categories: General Requirements Political activity Civd nghts Cash management Federal financial reports Allowable costs/cost principles Drug-free workplace Administrative requirements Specific Requirements Types of services allowed/disallowed Eligibility Matching level of effort Reporting Claims for advances and reimbursements Amounts claimed or used for matching 
For all of the internal control structure categones listed above, we obtained an understanding of the design of relevant polices and procedures and determined whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed control risk. During the fiscal year ended January 31, 1997, the Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. expended 100 percent of its total federal awards under the major programs listed in the Schedule of Federal Awards. 
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We performed tests of controls, as required by OMB Circular A-133, to evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of internal control structure policies and procedures that we considered relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with specific requirements, general requirements, and requirements governing claims for advances and reimbursements and amounts claimed or used for matching that are applicable to the aforementioned major program which is identified in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards. Our procedures were less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on these internal control structure pc~iicies and procedures. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. We noted certain matters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions under standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control structure that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the Organization's ability to administer federal award programs in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. 
These reportable conditions include SLIDING FEES 
Condition: The Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc., did not consistently obtain income verification from patients. Criteria: The regulations require that all patients who can pay for services be chargcd according to a sliding fee schedule. Effect: If the Organization does not check and document the patient income, the Clinic will not be able to collect all funds due. 
Recommendation: The Clinics should verify all patient income and include documentation in the patient file. BANK RECONCILIATIONS Condition: Bank reconciliations were not preformed on a regular monthly basis or agreed to the general ledger cash accounts. 
Criteria: Grant recipients are required to safeguard all assets of the organization. 
Effect: The organization could have misappropriated grant funds and not be aware of the problem in a timely manner. 
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Recommendation: All bank accounts corresponding bank statements and should agree. 
PURCHASING SYSTEM 

should be reconciled monthly with their be compared to the books to ensure that they 
Condition: The current system does not ensure that ptwchases of ~upplies ai~d materials arc made for the lowest available price. As a recipient of federal dollars, the orgamzation is permitted to purchase goods from vendors under the Louisiana State contract. Criteria: Orgamzations receiving federal assistance must adhere to allowable costs/cost principles. The grant goes further to require that all purchases for goods be necessary and reasonable for the proper administration of the program. Effect: The resulting effect is that the ,~ig,mlzation will pay more for goods than is necessary or reasonable. Recommendation: The organization should centralize the purchasing function and purchase as many items as possible under state contract. 4. CONTRACT VIOLATIONS 
Condition: We noted that the organization was not making monthly payments under two (2) of their capital leases. Criteria: The lease contracts require that the organization make monthly payments under the terms of the agreement. 
Effect: If the organization is found by the lessor to be in default of the terms in the agreement, the lessor could require the return of the asset. Recommendation: In order to avoid undue hardship on the organization, all requirements under contractual agreement should be adhered to. 941 PAYROLL TAX RETURN 
Condition: The payroll tax liability reported on the form 941 was incorrect 
Criteria: For the year ended December 31, 1996, the organization did not limit the amount of social security tax paid for individuals who are paid more than $62,700. Effect: The organization overpaid the social security payroll tax 



Recommendation: The organization should review the tax rules published in the Circular E, Employer's Tax Guide. 6. COST REPORTS Condition: The organization did not file Medicare and Medicaid cost reports for 1996 and !997 in a timeb manner. Criteria: In order for the organization to recover amounts due for Medicaid and Medicare claims, the organization is required to file annual cost reports. 
Effect: The funds due the organization will not be paid over in a timely manner 
Recommendation: The organization should take steps to ensure that the cost reports are filed by the due date. 

7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Condition: The financialtransactions for the year ended January 3I, 1997 were not posted to a general ledger. 
Criteria: OMB Circular A- 110 requires that the financial management system provide an accurate, current and complete disclosure of the financial results of each federally sponsored project. Effect: Irregularities could occur as a result of not having an accounting system in accordance ~ ith grant requirements. 
Recommendation: In order to reduce the risk of errors or irregularities, the accounting system should record all financial transactions in the books in a timely manner. 

8. RESULTS OF OPERATION 
Condition: The fnancial position of the organization was not compared to the budget on a regular basis. 
Criteria: OMB Circular A- 110 requires that the financial management system provide a comparison of outlays with budget amounts for each award. Effect: The organization was unable to properly manage grant results 
Recommendation: The financial statements should be compared to the budget on a regular basis. 



9. FIXED ASSETS 
Condition: Policies that are established to control which assets are capitalized or expended are not being followed. Criteria: OMB Circular A-110 requires that the financial management system provide effective controls over and accountability or" all property. Effect: Without the utilization of property controls, it is possible for the misappropriation of corporate assets. Recommendation: Control policies should be modified to ensure that all assets which cost a predetermined amount are being capitalized and recorded on the asset inventory list. 10. PROPERTY TAGS 
Condition: The fixed assets do not have property control tags 
Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A- 110, recipients of federal assistance should adequately safeguard all assets. 
Effect: Without the assets being tagged, it will not be readily possible to know which assets belong to the corporation. Recommendation: The items purchased, which meet requirements established by the board for fixed assets, should have an identifying sticker or decal affixed to it. The sticker should have an identifying property number and it should also state that the asset is property of the Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. 11. ASSET INVENTORY LIST 
Condition: The inventory list, which serves to control all fixed assets, did not adequately identify the assets owned by the Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. 
Criteria: In order to safeguard the assets in accordance with the OMB Circular, the asset inventory list should be complete. 
Effect: Without all assets being recorded on the asset list, the organization will not be able to adequately safeguard all assets. 
Recommendation: All assets recorded on the asset inventory list should be identified by a serial number when possible and a tag ID number. 
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12. PHYSICAL INSPECTION - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT Condition: The organization does not formally conduct a physical inventory of property and equipment on an annual basis. 
Criteria: In accordance with the OMB Circular A-110, the recipients of federal assistance should adequately sal'eguard all assets. Effect: Unless someone conducts a physical inspection on an annual basis, fixed assets could be misappropriated. 
Recommendation: The organization should have someone from the accounting department conduct an annual physical inventory. 

13. SALESTAX Condition: The organization has been paying $488.97 a month in sales tax on the capital lease of the modular building in TallulIah. 
Criteria: In accordance with state law, the organization is not responsible for sales tax on a modular building which is erected and permanently fixed to the location. Effect: The organization incorrectly paid sales tax to G.E. Capital 
Recommendation: The organization should approach G.E. Capital and make every attempt to reduce the capital lease obligation by the overpaid sales tax. 14. LEASE AGREEMENTS 
Condition: We noted that some of the lease documents were not on file within the office 
Criteria: In order to properly execute all contractual obligations, the Clinic should maintain all contracts in their current files. 
Effect: Without having the contracts readily available for inspection, the organization could violate the terms of the agreement and be exposed to monetary loss. Recommendation: All contracts should be maintained in the office 

15. FORM 990 TAX RETURN 
Condition: Form 990, annual income tax return, was not filed on time for the years ended January 31, 1996 and 1997. 



Criteria: Internal Revenue procedures require that the returns be filed by the fifteenth (15) day of the fifth month following the close of the fiscal year. Effect: The organization could be subjected to penalties up to $5,000 per year per return Recommendation: The organization should have the returns prepared and filed in a timely malll~er. 
16. LATE AUDIT REPORT Condition: The organization did not file their January 31, 1997 audit report with the State of Louisiana or their cognizant agency within the required time frame. 
Criteria: In accordance with State law, the audit should be filed with the State of Louisiana within six (6) months from the close of the fiscal year. The United State Department of Health and Human Services requires that the audit be filed within four (4) months. Effect: The organization could possibly be subjected to further grant restrictions Recommendation: The organization should take steps to ensure that the audit is preformed in a timely manner. 17. ACCOUNTSPAYABLE 
Condition: The accounts payabte subsidiary~ journal was not maintained on a regular basis and did not agree to the general ledger. Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A-110, the financial management system should provide for current and accurate disclosure of the financial activities. 
Effect: The organization was not able to properly analyze their financial position. Recommendation: Steps should be taken to ensure that all accounts payable outstanding are recorded on the books and are listed on the subsidiary journal by vendor and amount. 18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE Condition: The accounts receivable subsidiary journal was not maintained on a daily basis and did not agree to the general ledger. 
Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A-1 I0, the financial management system should provide for current and accurate disclosure of the financial activities. 



Effect: The organization was not able to properly analyze their financial position. 
Recommendation: Steps should be taken to ensure that all accounts receivable outstanding are recorded on the books and are listed in the subsidiary journal by vendor and amount. 19. LOUISIANA STATE GRANT Condition: The organization refunded to State of Louisiana a grant amount of $150,000 Criteria: The grant could have been used for operational purposes 
Effect: Ineffective cash management system 
Recommendation: Attempts should be made to recover the returned grant fimds 20. MEDICAL SUPPLIES INVENTORY Condition: The organization does not formally conduct a physical inventory on an annual 
Criteria: In accordance ~lth the OMB Circular A-I 10, the recipients of Federal Assistance should adequately sategu,~rd all assets. 
Effect: Unless someone conducts a physical inspection on an annual basis, supplies could be misappropriated. 
Recommendation: The organization should have someone conduct an annual physical inventory. 

21. SALE OF ASSETS Condition: The organization sold several pieces of equipment without a formal bid process 
Criteria: In order to receive the maximum dollars for the items sold, the organization should have a policy to authorize the sale of assets through a bid process or through an external valuation procedure. Effect: The organization was not allowed to sell assets to the highest bidder or receive the true value of the assets sold. 
Recommendation: Before any assets are sold, the accounting department should attempt to acquire an external valuation or perform a public bid process. 
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22. STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 
Condition: The state quarterly payroll tax retums for the third and fourth quarter of 1996 were not filed or paid on time. Criteria: The organization is required to file and pay the aforementioned reports by October 31. 1996 and Januar'~; 3 I. 1997. Effect: Due to the failure to file and pay, the organization will be subjected to unnecessary penalties and interest. 
Recommendation: All tax filing and paying deadlines should be strictly adhered to 

23. PAYROLL TAX DEPOSITS 
Condition: The federal payroll tax coupon forms 8109 for the year were marked for the incorrect type of tax. 
Criteria: The organization is required to deposit and pay form 941 taxes to a bankin g 
Effect: Due to the failure to appropriately mark the tax coupons, the Clinic didn't receive proper credit. Recommendation: Tax coupons should be appropriately marked by a responsible individual. 24. EMPLOYEE W-2 FORMS 
Condition: The social security tax and social security wages were incorrectly reported on some of the W-2's for the year ended December 31, 1996. Criteria: The social security wages exceeded the cap of $62,700 Effect: As a result of reporting social security wages higher than the cap, the social security withheld and reported on the W-2 was incorrect. 
Recommendation: accordance with the The amount withheld and reported on the W-2's should be in 



25. WIC REIMBURSEMENT REQUESTS 

Criteria: T':c want rcquh'c~; that all original grant documents be kept on file for a minimum o~ four (4) years. Effect: The organization could be subjected to increased grant restrictions 
Recommendation: All original grant source documents should be kept on file for a period of four (4) years. 26. WIC DISBURSEMENTS 
Condition: Disbursement checks were made payable to cash. 
Criteria: The WIC Program grant requires, all checks be made payable to a vendor Effect: The organization could be subjected to increased grant restrictions Recommendation: In the future, checks should be made payable to the recipient and not cash. 

27. WIC EXPENDITURE REPORT Condition: When requesting reimbursement funds, the organization did not complete and submit a disbursement report for the month and for the grant period according to budget category. 
Criteria: The grant requires that recipients submit a monthly expenditure report consisting of two (2) columns, current expenses and a year to date, categorized by budget category. Effect: The organization could be subjected to increased grant restrictions Recommendation: The oroamzation should follow all grant requirements in the contract. 28. RHI PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION 
Condition: Several of the rural health grant employees did not have an authorized payroll amount documented in their file. 



Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the rural health grant should have their authorized payroll on file. 
Effect: As a result of not updating the employees' files for payroll changes, it is impossible to tell whether employees were correctly paid. 
Recommendation: All current authorizcd payroll amounts should be on life 29. RHI PAYROLL DISBURSEMENTS Condition: Several of the rural health grant employee's payroll did not agree to their authorized payroll amount documented in their file. Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the rural health grant should have their authorized payroll on file. 
Effect: As a result of not updating the employees' files for payroll changes, it is impossible to tell whether the employees were correctly paid. Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on file 

30. WIC PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION Condition: Several of the WIC grant employees did not have an authorized payroll amount documented in their fie. 
Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the WIC grant should have their authorized payroll on file. Effect: If the authorized payroll amount is not on file, it is possible to incorrectly pay employees. Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on file 

31. WIC PAYROLL DISBURSEMENTS Condition: Several of the WIC grant employees' payroll did not agree to their authorized payroll amount documented in their file. Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the WIC grant should have their authorized payroll on file. 



Effect: As a result of not updating the employees" files for payroll changes, it is impossible to tell whether the employees were correctly paid. Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on file 
32. PATIENT CONFIDENTIALITY STATEMENT 
Condition: Some of the personnel files on the WIC Program employees did not contain a signed patient confidentiality statement. Criteria: The grant requires that employees with access to patient information sign a statement that all patient records are confidential. 
Effect: The grant support could possibly be reduced. Recommendation: All employee files should be updated to ensure that they contain a ,~gned patient confidentiality statement. 

33. TIME SHEETS Condition: As a result of our tests, we noted that some of the WIC Program employee pay checks were not supported by time sheets. 
Criteria: The grant requires that all activities be supported by source documents Effect: The grant support could possibly be reduced. Recommendation: All WIC Program pay checks should be supported by approved time sheets. 34. CORPORATE BYLAWS 
Condition: The Board of Directors current Composition and Bylaws do not fully meet the requirements for the 42CFR 58 l c.304. 
Criteria: The RHI Grant requires that the composition and selection of members be in accordance with the requirements of 42CFR 581 c.304. 
Effect: Failure of the governing board to meet the RHI Grant requirements, could result in grant restrictions. 
Recommendation: The Board should take steps to follow all federal mandates of the RHI Grant. 



35. AUTHORIZING SIGNATURES Condition: Some of the pay checks for the WIC Program did not contain two (2) authorizing signatures. 
Criteria: All checks are required to have two (2) authorized signatures Effect: Without the correct number of authorized signatures, disbursements could be made without direct Board approval. 
Recommendation: All checks should have two (2) authorized signatures 36. PAID INVOICES Condition: There were instances where invoices could not be located 
Criteria: As per the grant contracts, the organization is required to keep source documents on file for at least (4) years. 
Effect: The organization could possibly have increased grant restrictions 
Recommendation: We recommend that all invoices be kept on file and canceled with the carbon copy of the check stapled to the outside. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control structure elements does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with laws and regulations that would be material to a federal program may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses as defined above. However, we believe the reportable conditions noted above involving the internal control structure and its operation are a material weakness, These conditions were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of the procedures to be performed in our audit of the compliance of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. With requirements applicable to its major federal award programs for the year ended January 31, I997, and this report does not affect our report thereon dated September 30, 1997. 
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dated September 30, 1997 
This report is intended for the information of the States Department of Health and Human Services. and its distribution is not limited. 
Certified Public Accountants September 30, 1997 
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board of directors, management and the United However, this report is a matter of public record, 



 

MEMBER AME~aCAN ~NSTmJTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLE ACCOUNTANTS MEMB~R SOCI~ Y O~ LOLIIglANA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS DAUZAT, BEALL & DEBEVEC, CPAs A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE GENERAL REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAMS 

To the Board of Directors Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc Natchitoches, Louisiana 
We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of and for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 1997. In our report, our opinion was disclaimed because of a scope limitation. We have applied procedures to test the compliance of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. with the following requirements applicable to its federal awards programs, which are identified in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards, for the year ended January 31, 1997: political activity, civil rights, cash management, federal financial reports, allowable costs/cost principles, drug free work place, and administrative requirements. Our procedures were limited to the applicable procedures described in the Office of Management and Budgefs "Compliance Supplement for Audits of Institutions of Higher Learning and Other Non -Profit Institutions". Our procedures were substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion on Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc.'s compliance with the requirements listed in the preceding paragraph. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. With respect to the items tested, Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc., complied with the requirements listed in the second paragraph, except as described in the attached schedule. However, the extent of noncompliance noted in our testing indicates that, with respect to items that were not tested by us, there is more than a relatively low risk that Natehitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. may not have complied with the requirements referred to in the second paragraph. These 
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matters were considered by us in evaluating whether the financial statements are presented fairly in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. This report is intended for the information of the States Department of Health and Human Services. and its distribution is not limited. 
Certified Public Accountants September 30, 1997 
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MEMBER AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS MEMBER SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS DAUZAT, BEALL & DEBEVEC, CPAs A PE%O FESSIO N AL CORPO P~ATIO N 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS 

To the Board of Directors Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc Natehitoches, Louisiana We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. G(a nonprofit organization) as of and for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 1997. In our report, our opinion was disclaimed because of a scope limitation. We have also audited the compliance of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. with the requirements governing D pes of services allowed or unallowed; eligibility; matching, level of effort, or earmarking; reporting. ~pecial tests and provisions; claims for advances and reimbursements; and amounts claimed or used for matching that are applicable to its major federal award program, which is identified in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards, for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1997. The management of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. is responsible for the Organization's compliance with those requirements based on our audit. We conducted our audit of compliance with those requirements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United State< and Office Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, "Audits of Institutions ot Higher Education and Other Nonprofit Institutions." Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the requirements referred to in the second paragraph occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Organization's compliance with those requirements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
As a result of the noncompliance noted in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the organization did not comply with the specific requirements governing it's major programs. 
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Pro~ran~ 

NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31.1997 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTI| AND HUMAN SERVICES RHI PROGRAM SLIDING FEES 

Number Number of Number of of items Not Items in Items in P~gulallon T~sted C o qm_12iianee 

Condition: The Natcfutoches 10,530 IO0 48 Outpatient Medical Center, lnc. did not consistently obtain income verification I~om patients Criteria: ]'he regulations require that air patients who can pay for services be charged according to a shdmg fee schedule Effect: If the Organization does not check and document the patient income, the Clinic will not be able to collect all funds due, Recommendation: The Clinics should verify all patient income and include documentation in the patient file BANK RECONCILL~,TIONS Condition: Bank reconcdiations were 24 24 24 not preformed on a regular monthly basis or agreed to lhe general ledger cash ~ccounts Criteria: Grant recipients are required to safeguard all assets of the organization Effect: /-he organization could have misappropriated grant funds and not be aware of the p~oblem in a llmely manner Recommendation: AIr bank accounts should be reconciled monthly with their correspondmg bank statements and should be compared to the books to insure that they agree 

* Effect is either nominal, not ascertainable or not applicable 
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Dollar Amount of Items Amount of Not in Questioned Complmnee ~nst~ 



preoram 

NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

RHI PROGRAM PURCHASING SYSTEM 

Number of Items in Population 
Condition: fhe current system does not ensure that purchases of supplies and materials are made for the lowest avadable price As a reclptem of federal dollars, the organization is permitted to purchase goods from vendors under the Lomstana State contract Criteria: Organizations receiving l~deral assistance must adhere to allowable costs/cost principles. The grant goes further to require that all purchases fur goods be necessary and reasonable for the proper administration of the program. Effect: The resulting effect is that the orgal)JzalJon wll/pay more for goods than is necessary or reasonable Recommendation: The organization should centralize the purchasing functton and purchase as many items as possible under state contract CONTRACT VIOLATIONS 

Number of Items Not in (_~h IJ I_~_e 

Condition: We noted that the 7 7 2 organization was not making monthly payments under two (2) of their capital leases Criteria: The lease contracts require that the organization make monthly payments under the terms of the agreement. Effect: If the organization is fc*und by the lessor to be in default of the terms in the agreement, the lessor could require the return of the asset Recommendation: In order to avoJd undue hardship on the organization, all requirements under contractual agreement should be adhered to 
* C ?'oct IS either nominal, not ascertainable or not applicable 
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NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

RHI PROGRAM 941 PAYROLL TAX RETURN 

Number Number of of Items in Items 

Condition: The payroll tax 4 hability reported on the form 941 was mcorrect Criteria: For the year ended December 3 I. 1996. the orgeaalzation did not limit the amount of social security tax paid for individuals who earn more than $62.700 Effect: The orgamzatton overpaid the social ~ecurlty payroll tax Recommendation: The organization should revtew the tax rules published in the Circular E. Employer's Tax Guide COST REPORTS 

Number of Items Not in C.mpl~nee 
2 

Cotldition: The organization did [0 10 10 not t~[e Medicare and Medicaid cos̀t reports fi3r 1996 and 1997 in a flmely manner Crìteria: In order for the org~izatlon to recover amounts due for Medicaid and Medicare claims, 'the orgamzatlon ~s required to l~le annual cost reports Effect: Yhe funds due the organization "~vll~ nòt be paid over in a timely manner Recommendation: The org~mization should take steps tc, ensure that the cost reports are filed by the due date 

* EiTect is either nominal, not ascertainable o~ not apphcable 
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NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC NATCHITOCHES. LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 1N COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31. 1997 

RHI PROGRAM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Condition: The financial tr~sactlons for the year ended J~muary 3 I. 1997 were not posted to a general ledger 

Effect: Irregularities could occur as a result of not having an accounting system in accordance with grant requirements Recommendation: In order to reduce the rtsk of errors or trregularlties, the accountmg system should record all financial transactions in the books in a timely manner RESULTS OF OPERATION Condition: The financial position ot the organization waS not compared to the budget on a regular basis. Criteria: OMB Ctrcular A-110 requires that the financial management system provide a comparison of outlays with budget amoums for each av, ard Effect: The organization was unable to properly manage grant results Recommendation: Tile financial statements should be compared to the budget on a regular basts 

Number Number of of Items in Items Population Tested 

Eltbct Is etther nominal, not ascertatnable or not apphcable. 

Number of Items Not in Compliance 
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NATCHITOCttES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC NATCH1TOCHES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

RH1 PROGRAM FIXED ASSETS Condition: Policies that are established to control which assets are capaalized or expended are not bemg lbllowed Criteria: OMB Circular A-110 requires that the financial management system provide cffective controls over and accountabthty of all property Effect: Without the uttlization of property controls, it is posstble Ibr the misappropriation of corporate assets Recommendation: Control policies should be modified to ensure that all assets which cost a predetermined amount are being capaahzed and recorded on the asset inventory, list PROPERTY TAGS Condition: The fixed assets do not have property, control tags Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A-110, rectptents of federal assistance should adequately safeguard all assets Effect: Without the assets being tagged, it will not be readily possible to know which assets belong to the corporation Recommendation: The items purchased, which meet requirements estabhshed by the board Ibr fixed assets, should have an identifying ~tlcker or decal affixed to It The sticker should have an identifying property number and it should also state that the asset is property of the Natchttoches Outpattent Medical Center. lnc 

Number Number of of Items m Items Population Tested 

Effect ts ctther nominal, not ascertamable or not applicable 

Number of Items Not Dollar in Compliance 
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Amount of Population 
Dollar Amount Items Te~ted . 
Dollar Amount of Items Amount of Not in Questioned Compliance Costs 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER. INC NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31. 1997 

RHI PROGRAM ASSET INVENTORY LIST Condition: The inventory Itst, which serves to control all fixed assets, did not adequately identify the assets owned by the Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center. lnc Criteria: In order to safeguard the assets in accordance with the OMB Circular, the asset inventory list should be complete. Effect: Without all assets being recorded on the asset list, the organization wdl not be able to adequately safeguard all assets Recommendation: All assets recorded on the asset inventory list should be identified by a serial number when possthle a~qd a tag 1D number 

Number Number of of Items m Items Population Tested 

PHYSICAL INSPECTION - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT Condition: The organization de, es not t~.,rmatly cor~6~.~ct a physical inventory of property and equipment on an annual basis Criteria: In accordance with the OMB Circular A-| lg. the recipients of federal assistance should adequately safeguard all assets. Effect: Unless someone conducts a physical inspection on an annual basts, fixed assets could be misappropriated Recommendation: The organization should ]lave someone from the accounting department conduct an annual physical inventory 

Effect is either nommal, not ascertainable or not applicable 

Number of Items Not Dollar la Compliance 
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Amount of Pnpulation 
Dollar Amount Items T-~ed 
Dollar Amount of Items Amount of Not in Questioned Compliance Co~t~ 
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NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC, NATCH1TOCHES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

Rill PROGRAM SALES TAX Condition: The organization has been paying $488 97 a month in sales tax on the capital lease of the modular building m Tallullah. Criteria: In accordance with state law. the organization is not responsible for sales tax on a modular building which is erected and permanently fixed to the location. Effect: The: organization incorrectly paid sales tax to G E Capital. Reeom mendltion: The otgaruzat,on should approach G E. Capital and make every attempt to reduce the capital lease obligation by the overpaid sales tax. LEASE AGREEMENTS 

Number Number of of Items in Items Population Tested 
Number of Items Not in Compliance 

Dollar Dollar Amount Amount of Items Population Tested 
Dollar Amount ofltems Amount of Not in Questioned Compliance Costs 

Condition: We noted that some 7 7 4 of the [ease documents were not on file within the office. Crileria: In ordet toproperly execute all contractual ohhgations. the chmc sh~ddmaintam all contracts in their current files Effect: Without having the contracts readily available for inspection, the organlZallOn could violate the terms of the agreement and be exposed to monetary loss. Recommend,lion: All contracts should be maT~ained in the office. 

Effect is eltbex nominal, not ascertainable or not apphcahte 74 
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NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

RHI PROGRAM FORM 990 TAX RETURN 

Number Number of of Items in Items Population Tested 
Number of Items Not in .Compliance 

Dollar Dollar Amount Amount of Items Population Tested 
Dollar Amount of Items Amount of Not in Questioned Compliance Costs 

Condition: Form 990, annual 2 2 2 income tax return, was not filed on time for the years ended January 31, 1996 and 1997 Criteria: internal Revenue procedures require that the returns be filed by the fifteenth (15/day of the fifth month following the close of the fiscal year Effect: The organization could be sulLlected to penalties up to $5,000 per year per return. Recommendation: The organization should have the returns prepared and flied in a ttmely manner LATE AUDIT REPORT Condition: The orgamzafion dLd not file their ]mluary 31,1997 audit report wtth the State of Louisiana or their cognlzam agency wlthm the required tlme flame Criteria: In accordance with State law, the audit should be filed with the State of Louisiana within six (6) months from the close of the fiscal year. The Unded State Department of Health and Human Services requires that the audit be filed with.in tour (4"} months Effect: The organization could posstbly be subjected to further grant restrictions. Recommendation: The organization should take steps to ensure that the audtt Is prelbrmed in a timely manner 
Effect is either nominal, not ascertainable or not apphcab/e, 
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NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

RHI PROGRAM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Condition: The accounts payable subsidiary journal was not maintained on a regular basis and did not agree to the general ledger Criteria: [n accordance wtth OMB Ctrcular A-110. the financial management system should provtde for current and accurate disclosure of the financial actlvdies. Effect: Fhe organization was not able to properly analyze their financial position. Recommendation: Steps should be taken to ensure that all accounts payable outstanding are recorded in the books and are listed on the subsldtaa3' Journal by vendor and amount. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE Condition: The accounts receivable subsidiary journal was not maintained on a daily basis and did not agree to the general ledger Criteria: In accordance with OMB Ctrcular A- 110. the financial management system should provide for current and accurate disclosure of the financial activities Effect: The organization was not able to properly analyze their financial position. Recommendation: Steps should be taken to ensure that all accounts recewable outstandmg are recorded on the books and are ]tsted In the subsidiary, journal by vendor and amount 

Number Number of of Items in Items Population Tested 

Effect ~s either nominal, not ascertainable or not applicable 

Number of Items Not Dollar in Amount of Compliance ]'opnlatlnn 
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Dollar Amount of Items Amount of Not in Questioned Compliance Costs 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 
Number Number of Dollar Number of of Items Not Dollar Amount Items in Items in Amount of Items Program Population Tested Compliance Population I tgced RHI PROGRAM LOUISIANA STATE GRANT Condition: The organization refunded to the State of Louisiana a grant amount of $150.000 Criteria: The grant could have been used for operational purposes Effect:: Ineffective cash management system Recommendation: Attempts should be made to recover the returned grant funds MEDICAL SUPPLIES INVENTORY Condition: The organization does not formally conduct a physical inventory on an annual basls Criteria: In accordance wtth the OMB Circular A-110, the recipients of Federal Assistance should adequately safeguard all assets. Effect: Unless someone conducts a physical inspection on an annual basis, supplies could be misappropriated. Recommendation: The organization should have someone conduct an annual physical mventory 

Effect is either nommal, not ascertainable or not applicable. 
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NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

RHI PROGRAM SALE OF ASSETS Condition: The organization sold several pieces of equipment without a tbrmai bid process Criteria: in order to receive the maximum dollars tbr the items sold. the organization should have a policy to authorize the sale of assets through a btd process or through an external valuation procedure. Effect: The organization was not allowed to sell assets to the highest bidder or receive the true value of the assets sold Recommendation: Before any a~sets are ~old, the accounting depanmem ~hould attempt to acquire an external valuation or periofm a public bid process. STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX Condition: The state quarterly payroll tax returns lbr the third and fourth quarter of 1996 were not filed or paid on time Criteria: The orgamzatlon is required to file and pay ihe afore mentioned reports by October 31, 1996 and 
Effect: Due to the failure to file and pay, the organization will be subjected to unnecessary penalties and interest Recommendation: All tax filing and paying deadlines should be strictly adhered to 

Number Number of or Items in I1ems Population I e~ted 

Fl]eet ts etther nominal not ascertainable or not applicable 

Number of Items Not in Comuliance 

4 2 
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NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FlSCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31. 1997 

RH1 PROGRAM PAYROLL TAX DEPOSITS Condition: fhe federal payroll tax coupon forms 8109 for the year were marked for the mcolrect type of tax Criteria: The organization is required to deposit and pay form 941 taxes to a banking institution Effect: Due to the l~ulure to appropriately mark the tax coupons, the Clinic didn't receive proper credit 

Number of Items in Population 

Recommendation: Tax coupons should be appropriately marked by a responsible mthvidual EMPLOYEE W-2 FORMS 

Number of Items Not in Compliance 

Condition The social security 72 72 8 tax and social security wages were incorrectly reported on some of the W-2's for the year ended December 31, 1996 Criteria: The social security wages exceeded the cap of $62,700 Effect: As a result ofreporttng social security wages higher than the cap, the social security withheld and reported on the W-2 was incorrect Recommendation: The amount withheld and reported on the W-2's should be in accordance wuh the Circular E. Employer s Tax Gutde 

Effect is either nominal, not ascertainable or not applicable, 
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NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE WIC PROGRAM 

Number Number of of Items in Items Population Tested 
WIC REIMBURSEMENT REQUESTS Condition: The orgafuzatlon could not locate copies of the WlC Program's reimbursement reporls for the period February 1996 thru July 1996 Asaresult. the organization had to obtain copies fi-om the State Criteria: The grant requires that all original grant documents be kept on file for a minimum of four (4) years Effect: The orgamzatlon could be subjected to increased grant restrlcttons Recommendation: All origmal grant source documents should be kept on file for a period of four (4) years. WIC DISBURSEMENTS 

24 

Number of Items Not Dollar in Compliance Amount of Population 

Condition: Dtsbursement 142 10 2 $8,986 checks were made payable to cash Criteria: Thea WIC Program grant requtres, all checks be made payable to a vendor Effect: The organization could be subjected to mcreased grant restrictions Recommendation: In the future, checks should be made payable to the rectptent and not cash. 

Effect ]s either nominal, not ascertamahle or not applicable 
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Dollar Amount Items Tested 
Dollar Amount of Items Amount of Not in Questioned Comoliance Costs 
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NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 1N COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

WIC PROGRAM WIC EXPENDITURE REPORT Condition: When requesting reimbursement funds, the orgamzatlon did not complete and submd a disbursement report for the month and for the grant period according to budget category Criteria: The grant requires that reciptents submit a monthly expenditure report cons~stthg of two (2) columns, current expenses and a year to date, categorized by budget category E'ffeet~ The o'rgan~tT.atac,'n ~.c,'o/t[ be subjected to incre~ed grant restrictions 

Number Number of of Items in Items Populgtion Tested 

Recommendation: The ,,reanlzatlon should l~llow all grant reqmrcMLnt5 in the contract. Rill PROGRAM RH1 PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION Cot~ditio~t: geverat of the rural health grant employees did not have an authorized payroll amount documented tn their file, Criteria: In order to eompty with grant requirements, all employees under the rural health grant should have their authorized payroll on file. Effect: As a result of not updating the employees' files for payroll changes, it is impossthle to tell whether employees were correctly pard. Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on file 
Effect ~s either nominal, not ascertainable or not applicable 

24 

Number of Items Not in Compliance 
24 

8l 

Dollar Dollar Amount Amount of Item~ Population I ~ ,ted 
Dollar Amount of Items Amouqt o~ Not in Que~|=ont d Compliance ( osf~ 
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Number Number of of Items in Items Population Tested. R|II PROGRAM RHI PAYROLL DISBURSEMENTS 

Number of Items Not in Comnliance 
Condition: Several of the rural 56 25 9 health grant employee's payroll did not agree to their authorized payroll ~ount documented in their file Criteria: in order to comply wtth grant requirements, all employees under the rural health grant should have their authorized payroll on file Effect: As a result of not updating the employees' files for payroll changes, it zs impossible to tell whether the employees were correctly paid Recommendation: All current authorized payro[I amounts should be on file WIC P ROG RAI~,I WIC PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION Condition: Several of the WIC grant employees dtd not have an authorized payroll amount documented in their file Criteria: In order to comply wtth grant requtrements, all employees under the WIC grant should have their authorized payroll on file Effect: If the authorized payroll amount is not on file, it ts possible to Incorrectly pay employees Recommendation: All cu~ent authortzed payroll amoun~ should be on file 

Effect is either nominal, not ascertatnable or not applicable 

2 8 
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Number Number nf nf Items in Items Population Tested 

WIC PROGRAM WIC PAYROLl+ DISBURSEMENTS 

Number of Items Not Dollar in Complia=nee 
Condition: Several of the WIC 16 12 2 grant employees" payroll did not agree to their authorized payroll amount documented in thexr li|e Criteria: In order to comply wtth grant requirements, all employees under the WIC grant should have thetr authortzed payroll on file Effect: As a result of not updattng the employees' files for payroll changes, tt is impossible to tell whether the employees were correctly paid Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on file PATIENT CONFIDENTIALITY STATEMENT 

Amount nf Populatinn 

Condition: Some of the personnel [6 12 6 * files on the WIC Program emp[oyees did not contam a stgned patient confidentiality statement. Criteria: The grant requtres that employees with access to panem intbrmatton sign a statement that all patient records are confidential. Effect: The grant support could poss,bly be reduced Recommendation: All employee files should be updated to ensure that they contain a signed patient con fidentiahty statement. 

Effect Is either nominal, not ascertainable or not applicable 
83 
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WIC PROGRAM TIME SHEETS 

Number of Items in Population 
Number of Items Not in Compliance 

Dollar Dollar Amount Amount of Items Population Tested 
Dollar Amount of Items Amount of Not in Questioned Compliance Costs 

Condition: As a result of our 226 23 2 $137,369 $10,023 $563 $563 tests, we noted that some of the WIC Program employee pay checks were not supported by time sheets Criteria: Fhe grant requires that all activities be supported by source documents Effect: The grant support could posstbly be reduced Recommendation: All WIC Program pay checks should be supported by approved ttme sheets RHI PROGRAM CORPORATE BYLAWS 

Criteria: The PHI Grant requires that the composition and selection of members be in accordance with the requirements of 42CFR 581c.304 Effect: Failure of the goveratrtg board to meet the RHI Grant requirements, could result m grant restricuons Recommendation: The Board should take steps to follow all federal mandates of the RHI Grant. 

Effect is either nominal, not ascertainable or not applicable 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 
Number Number of Dollar Number of of Items Not Dollar Amount Items in Items in Amount of Items Program Population Tested Comoliance Population Tested WIC PROGI~'~ M AUTHORIZING SIGNATURES Condition: Some of the pay 226 checks for the WIC Program did not contain two (2) authorizing stgnatures Criteria: All checks are required to have two (2) authorized signatures. Effect: Without the correct number of authorized signatures, disbursements could be made without dtrect Board approval Recommendation: All checks should have two (2) authorized signatures PAIDINVOICES 

$137,369 $10.023 

Condition: There were instances 142 10 10 $8.986 $4,082 where some of the invoices for the WlC Program could not be located. Criteria: As per the grant contracts, the organtzation ts requtred to keep source documents on file for at least (4) years Effect: lh~ , r_ uu/atloncouldposslbly have inert ,3.~L d gr ii1{ restrictions. Recommendation: We recommend that all invoices be kept on file and canceled with the carbon copy of the check stapled to the outside. 

Effect ~s either nominal, not ascertamable or not applicable 
85 

Total 

Dollar Amount of Items Amount of Not in Questioned Compliance Costs 

$4,082 


